






 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (8/22/23) 

MINUTES 

Page 1 of 4 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

THE HARRIS CENTER for 

MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 22, 2023 

MINUTES 
 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Jim Lykes, Chairman called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. in Conference Room 109, 9401 

Southwest Freeway, noting a quorum of the Committee was present.   

 

RECORD OF ATTENDANCE 
 

Committee Members in Attendance:  Mr. J. Lykes, Mr. G. Womack, Dr. G. Santos, 

Mr. S. Zakaria, Mrs. N. Hurtado 

 

 Committee Member Absent:   
 

Other Board Member Present: Dr. R. Gearing, Dr. L. Moore, Mrs. B. Hellums 

 
 

1. DESIGNATION OF BOARD MEMBERS AS VOTING COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

Mr. Jim Lykes designated Dr. R. Gearing, Dr. L. Moore and Mrs. B. Hellums as voting 

members of the committee. 

 

2.  DECLARATION OF QUORUM 

 The meeting was called to order at 8:35 a.m.  
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 There were no Public Comments. 

 

4.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

    Minutes of the Board of Trustees Governance Committee meeting held on Tuesday,  

July 25, 2023 

 

MOTION: HELLUMS SECOND: MOORE 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Minutes of the Board of Trustees Governance Committee meeting held 

on Tuesday, July 25, 2023 EXHIBIT G-1 has been approved and recommended to the Full 

Board.   

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 60



 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (8/22/23) 

MINUTES 

Page 2 of 4 

5. REVIEW AND TAKE ACTION 

A.  NO/MINOR CHANGES 

1. Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Service 

Wait/Interest List 
 

MOTION: WOMACK  SECOND: SANTOS 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Service 

Wait/Interest List, EXHIBIT G-2 has been approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

2. Drug/Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment  
 

MOTION: HELLUMS   SECOND: HURTADO 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Drug/Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment EXHIBIT G-3 has been approved 

and recommended to the Full Board. 

3. Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline, and 

Termination 
 

MOTION: ZAKARIA   SECOND: HELLUMS 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline, and 

Termination EXHIBIT G-4 has been approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

 

4. Employment Eligibility Verification for Worker in the United States 
 

MOTION: HURTADO   SECOND: MOORE 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Employment Eligibility Verification for Worker in the United States 

EXHIBIT G-5 has been approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

 

5. Least Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive Behavior 

 

MOTION: SANTOS   SECOND: HURTADO 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

Page 4 of 60



 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (8/22/23) 

MINUTES 

Page 3 of 4 

BE IT RESOLVED, Least Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive Behavior 

EXHIBIT G-6 has been approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

6. Obligation to Identify Individuals or Entities Excluded from Participation in 

Federal Health Care Programs 
 

MOTION: SANTOS   SECOND: GEARING 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Obligation to Identify Individuals or Entities Excluded from Participation in 

Federal Health Care Programs EXHIBIT G-7 has been approved and recommended to the Full 

Board 

7. Payment of Accrued Leave Upon Separation 
 

MOTION: ZAKARIA  SECOND: SANTOS 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Payment of Accrued Leave Upon Separation EXHIBIT G-8 has been 

approved and recommended to the Full Board 

8. Performance Improvement Plan 

 

Mr. S. Zakaria motioned table until September meeting so that it can be 

updated. 

Dr. G. Santos seconded the motion. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Performance Improvement Plan EXHIBIT G-9 has been tabled until the 

September meeting so that it can be updated.   

 

9. Professional Behavior and Attire 

 

MOTION: ZAKARIA  SECOND: HELLUMS 

Mr. S. Zakaria motioned to withdraw his motion to move forward with the 

policy. 

Dr. G. Santos motioned to table the policy until September meeting so that it 

can be updated. 

Mr. G. Womack seconded the motion. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Professional Behavior and Attire EXHIBIT G-10 has been tabled until the 

September meeting so that it can be updated.  

 

Page 5 of 60



 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (8/22/23) 

MINUTES 

Page 4 of 4 

10. Screening and Assessment for Mental Health Substance Use and Intellectual 

and Development (IDD) Services 
 

MOTION: SANTOS  SECOND: ZAKARIA 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Screening and Assessment for Mental Health Substance Use and 

Intellectual and Development (IDD) Services EXHIBIT G-11 has been approved and 

recommended to the Full Board 

11. Whistleblower 
 

MOTION: SANTOS  SECOND: MOORE 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, Whistleblower EXHIBIT G-12 has been approved and recommended to the 

Full Board 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION –Mr. Lykes announced the Governance Committee will enter 

into Executive Session at 9:01am as authorized by §§551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas 

Government Code, discussion of Personnel Matters related to Board members’ fiduciary duties. 

Shaukat Zakaria, Board Chair and Kendra Thomas, General Counsel. 

 

7. RECONVENED INTO OPEN SESSION- Mr. Lykes reconvened the Governance 

Committee into open session at 9:15am. 

        

8.    CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE SESSION  

No action was taken in Executive Session 

 

9.     ADJOURN 

MOTION:  HELLUMS  SECOND:  SANTOS 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:15 A.M. 

 
 Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

  Veronica Franco, Board Liaison 

Jim Lykes, Chairman 

Governance Committee  
THE HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD                            

Board of Trustees  

 

Page 6 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14205172 

Origination N/A 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised N/A 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Sylvia Muzquiz-
Drummond: VP 

Area Medical Services 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention 

1. PURPOSE: 
To ensure the safety of consumers and employees to the fullest extent possible by providing timely, 
prudent and the least restrictive action when a person poses a threat of harm to self or others. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to protect the health, safety, and well-being of its consumers and 
employees by taking timely, prudent and the least restrictive action to prevent, assess the risk of, 
intervene in and respond to threats of harm to self (suicide), others (violence) and or behavioral health 
crisis. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center programs and locations. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 

• The Harris Center’s Policy and Procedure Handbook (hyperlink) 

• Event Report (RLS) 

• The Harris Center Suicide Prevention CARE PATHWAY (include hyperlink here) 

• HPD CIRCULAR (review if it needs to be in a procedure) (include hyperlink here) 

Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

14205172/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 7 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Wayne Young: Exec 09/2023 

Legal Kendra Thomas: Counsel 09/2023 

Department Review I Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 
(1101 1817) 

08/2023 

Initial Sylvia Muzquiz-Drummond: VP 08/2023 

5. PROCEDURE: 
6. PROCEDURES: 
N/A 

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• TAC Title 37 Part 11 Chapter 380 Subchapter C. Division 4. Health Care Services. Rule 
380.9187. Suicide Alert Definitions 

• American Association of Suicidology. https://suicidology.org/resources/warning-signs/ 

• Mental Health Community Services Standards. General Provisions. Texas Administrative Code. 
Title 26 Part 1. Chapter 301. Subchapter G. Division 1. Rule 301.303. Definitions. 

• Texas Mental Health Code Chapter 571. General Provisions: Sec 571.002 

• Provider Clinical Responsibilities Mental Health Services, 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 
415 

• Prescribing of Psychoactive Medications, 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 415, 
Subchapter A 

• Interventions in Mental Health Services, 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 415, Subchapter 
F 

• Determination of Manifest Dangerousness, 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 415, 
Subchapter G 

• Emergency Detention, Health and Safety Code, Title 7 Mental Health and Intellectual Disability, 
Subtitle C Texas Mental Health Code, Chapter 573 

Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

14205172/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 8 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14121260 

Origination 09/2021 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 08/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Wayne Young: 
Exec 

Area Leadership 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

LD12A - Code of Ethics Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD ("The Center") requires its directors, officers, employees and 
contractors to observe high standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and 
responsibilities. As employees and representatives of The Center, we must practice honesty and integrity 
in fulfilling our responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations. 

All Harris Center Board of Trustees, employees, interns, volunteers, and contractors. 

2. POLICY: 
The purpose of the Code of Ethics policy (the "Policy") is to increase awareness of potential conflicts of 
interest and to ensure that all Board of Trustees and personnel always demonstrate and adhere to the 
highest standards of ethical and professional conduct. The Policy is to ensure that the actions of all 
personnel reflect a competent, respectful, and professional approach when serving consumers, their 
families and/or representative, and/or representatives, working with other providers, and interacting in 
the community we serve. 

A. Conflicts of Interest 

Trustee: 
No trustee shall participate in a vote or decision on a matter involving a business entity or 
contract in which the Trustee or any related person in the first degree by consanguinity or 
affinity has a substantial interest or take any steps, directly or indirectly, to influence or 
persuade other Trustees or any employee in connection with such matter, if it is reasonably 
foreseeable that an action on the matter would confer an economic benefit on the business 

LD12A - Code of Ethics Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121260/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 7

Page 9 of 60



entity. A person has a substantial interest in a business entity if: 

a. The person owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock or shares of the business 
entity or owns either 10 percent or more or $15,000 or more of the fair market value 
of the business entity; or 

b. Funds received by the person from the business entity exceeds 10% of the person's 
gross income for the previous year. 

A person has a substantial interest in real property if the interest is an equitable or legal 
ownership with a fair market value of $2,500 or more. 

If a Trustee or any related person has a substantial interest in a business entity or in real 
property, the Trustee, before a vote or decision on any matter involving the business entity or 
the real property, where it is reasonably foreseeable that any action on the matter will have a 
special economic effect on the business entity or on the value of the property distinguishable 
from its effect on the public, shall file an affidavit stating the nature and extent of the interest 
and shall abstain from further participation in the matter. Such affidavit shall be filed with the 
secretary of the Board of Trustees and shall be maintained in the records of the Center. 

A Trustee shall not hold another office or position where one office is accountable or 
subordinate to the other, or where there is an overlap of powers and duties such that the 
Trustee could not independently serve in both positions. 

Employee: 
Except in the circumstances and on the conditions provided below, no employee shall 
participate in any decision or take any action in his or her capacity as an employee of the 
Center on a matter involving a business entity or real property in which the employee or any 
related person has an interest where it is reasonably foreseeable that a decision or action on 
the matter would confer an economic benefit on the business entity, the employee or related 
person. 

Any employee engaged in providing clinical/rehabilitative services and/or support outside of 
Center employment must obtain prior written approval from their department head, 
appropriate Vice President and the Chief Executive Officer Providing such services and/or 
support may be allowed if it does not interfere with or violate the efficient operation of The 
HARRIS CENTER or Board of Trustees approved Code of Ethics. Employees may not use 
Agency facilities or Agency property to assist them in providing such outside services and/or 
support; nor can employees use the Center's resources, personnel, facilities, or equipment for 
purposes other than for Center business. 

Trustee and/or Employee: 
No Trustee, nor any employee, shall accept any employment, office, or other position which 
might be expected to impair the independence or the judgment of such person in the 
performance of his or her duties with the Center. 

Examples of Conflict of Interest: 

1. Being employed (you or a close family member) by, or acting as a consultant to, a 

LD12A - Code of Ethics Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121260/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 7

Page 10 of 60



competitor or potential competitor, supplier or contractor, regardless of the nature of 
the employment, while you are employed with The Harris Center. 

2. Hiring or supervising family members or closely related persons. 

3. Owning or having a substantial interest in a supplier or contractor of The Harris 
Center. 

4. Having a personal interest, financial interest or potential gain in any Harris Center 
transaction. 

5. Placing company business with a firm owned or controlled by a Harris Center 
employee or his or her family. 

6. Accepting gifts, discounts, favors or services from a customer/potential customer, 
competitor or supplier, unless equally available to Harris Center employees. 

Determining whether a conflict of interest exists is not always easy to do. Employees with a 
conflict-of-interest question should seek advice from management. Before engaging in any 
activity, transaction or relationship that might give rise to a conflict of interest, employees 
must seek review from their managers or the HR department. 

B. Nepotism 

1. A Trustee or Chief Executive Officer may not hire as a paid officer or employee of the 
community center a person who is related to a member of the board of trustees by 
affinity within the second degree or by consanguinity within the third degree. 

2. An officer or employee who is related to a member of the board of trustees in a 
prohibited manner may continue to be employed if the person began the 

employment not later than the 31st day before the date on which the member was 
appointed. 

3. The officer or employee or the member of the board of trustees shall resign if the 

officer or employee began the employment later than the 31st day before the date on 
which the member was appointed. 

4. If an officer or employee is permitted to remain in employment under subsection (2), 
the related member of the Board of Trustees may not participate in the deliberation 
of or voting on an issue on an issue that is specifically applicable to the officer or 
employee unless the issue affects the entire class or category of employees. 

The term "relative" as used in this section means any person related to the Trustee or 
employee (not closer than Aunt, Uncle, or Cousin). 

C. Commencement of Service 
Upon appointment as a Trustee and upon the employment of any employee, each Trustee and 
each employee shall execute an acknowledgement that he or she has read this Code of Ethics, 
any and all changes, revisions, or additions as amended; agrees to abide by its terms and 
conditions; and represents to the Center that, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, he 
or she is not aware of any prior or existing violations of such Code of Ethics. 

D. Exchange of Gifts, Money and Gratuities 

LD12A - Code of Ethics Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121260/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 3 of 7

Page 11 of 60



The Harris Center is committed to competing solely on the merit of our services. We should 
avoid any actions that create a perception that favorable treatment of outside entities by The 
Harris Center was sought, received, or given in exchange for personal business courtesies. 

Business courtesies include gifts, gratuities, meals, refreshments, entertainment or other 
benefits from persons or companies with whom The Harris Center does or may do business. 
We will neither give nor accept business courtesies that constitute, or could reasonably be 
perceived as constituting, unfair business inducements that would violate law regulation or 
policies of The Harris Center or customers or would cause embarrassment or reflect 
negatively on The Harris Center's reputation. 

Employees should always ask themselves whether it is appropriate to accept something from 
a person who wants, or may want, or may be seen to want, an official favor within their 
authority. It is unethical to accept or give a gift that is meant to sway a decision in favor of the 
gift-giver. 

No Trustee or employee shall ask for, accept or agree to accept money, loans or anything of 
value as consideration for a decision or other exercise of discretion by a Trustee or employee. 

A Trustee or employee shall reject any benefit for his or her past official actions in favor of 
another person. 

No Trustee or employee shall exercise his or her official position without authority, fail to 
perform a required duty, or take or use any property of the Agency with the intent to obtain a 
personal benefit. 

A Trustee or employee shall not misuse information that he or she receives, in advance other 
public entities, because of the Trustee's or employee's official capacity. A Trustee or employee 
shall not engage in any business activity that might lead to the disclosure of confidential 
information of the Agency or any of its consumers. 

A Trustee or employee shall reject any job, favor, or other benefit that might tend, or is 
intended, to impair or influence his or her official conduct or independence. 

Trustees and employees owe a duty of loyalty to the Agency and may not engage in any action 
on their own personal behalf, or that of another, which conflicts with the interests of the 
Agency. 

No Trustee or employee shall engage in any related business activity or use a previous position 
of the Trustee or employee to gain any personal benefit for a period of one year following his 
or her separation as a Trustee or employee of the Agency. 

No employee shall receive or accept compensation from any source other than the Agency, for 
the same services to the same consumer for which they receive compensation from the 
Agency. 

E. Personal Fundraising 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to minimize disruptions in the workplace cause by the 

LD12A - Code of Ethics Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121260/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 4 of 7

Page 12 of 60



unauthorized sale of items, solicitations of contributions, or the distribution of advertising 
materials. Furthermore, it is counterproductive for employees to feel pressured to contribute 
financially to any enterprise whether it is a for-profit or non-profit. 

1. Fundraising and/or solicitation by or of employees during work hours and/or on 
Harris Center property without authorization from their immediate supervisor or 
designee is strictly prohibited. 

2. Solicitation means any verbal or written communication thatwhich encourages, 
demands, or requests a contribution of money, time, effort, or personal involvement 
for any enterprise. This includes, but is not limited to, charitable or personal profit 
activities such as, selling products of any kindkinds, raffle tickets, admissions to 
events, and donations to assist persons experiencing a personal crisis. 

3. Employees who wish to solicit on behalf of their children's schools, scouting 
programs, or other not-for-profit purposes, including for the benefit of a person or co-
worker involved in a personal tragedy, must submit a written request to their 
immediate supervisor. 

4. Employees may not initiate any fundraising and/or solicitation activities until written 
authorization has been obtained from their immediate supervisor. 

5. The Harris Center's interoffice and email systems may not be used to communicate 
information about non-Harris Center sponsored fundraising activities. 

F. Service Delivery 

1. The Harris Center will provide quality behavioral health care in a manner that is, 
determined to be medically necessary, effective, and the least restrictive treatment 
alternative. 

2. Ensure that consumer information is kept confidential according to applicable 
federal, state, and local laws. 

3. All Harris Center employees, contractors, volunteers, and interns shall follow current 
ethical standards regarding communication with consumers (and their 
representatives) regarding services provided. 

4. The Harris Center will inform consumers about alternatives and risks associated 
with the care they are seeking and obtain informed consent prior to any clinical 
interventions. 

5. The Harris Center recognizes the right of consumers to make choices about their 
own treatment, including the right to refuse treatment. 

G. Setting boundaries 
While the nature of the job responsibilities of the Center staff members requires that they 
interact closely with consumers, it should be emphasized that these relationships must be 
kept on a professional level. It is the responsibility of the Center staff member to ensure that a 
supportive, yet professional relationship is maintained, and is perceived as such by all 
involved. 

No Trustee or employee of the Agency shall file for managing conservatorship or guardianship, 
petition to terminate parent/child relationships, or file for adoption of any child who is a 

LD12A - Code of Ethics Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121260/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 5 of 7

Page 13 of 60



consumer or whose family is a consumer of The HARRIS CENTER. 

All current and former Trustees, employees, Consultants, and Volunteers of The HARRIS 
CENTER will hold all information pertaining to The HARRIS CENTER, its consumers, and its 
employees in confidence, and shall not engage in any activity that might lead to the disclosure 
of confidential information of the Center or its consumers, except as may be required by law. 

All Harris Center Employees, contractors, interns, and volunteers shall adhere to the following 
guidelines: 

1. Place the needs of their consumers on their caseload at the center of any treatment-
related decisions that you make about them and their lives. 

2. Shall not disclose personal or financial information with consumers. 

3. Understand the limitations of their role and personal capabilities, and when to refer 
to other professionals or to seek further support and advice. 

4. Refrain from connecting with their consumers on social media. 

5. Maintain a courteous and respectful attitude with all consumers equally. 

6. Do no give or accept gifts, loans, money, or other valuables to or from the consumer. 

7. Always clarify your professional role with the consumer. 

H. Witnessing of legal documents 

1. Harris Center employees shall not agree to be a witness or sign as a witness on any 
legal documents (e.g., Declaration for Mental Health Treatment, durable power of 
attorneys, medical power of attorney, wills) a consumer presents. 

2. Employees shall inform the consumer they will need to obtain their witnesses not 
employed or contracted by the Harris Center for legal documents. 

3. Employees who are notary publics and obtained their commission for Harris Center 
business shall only notarize documents related to The Harris Center business. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center Board of Trustees, employees, interns, volunteers and contractors. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 
Agency Compliance Plan 

LD12A - Code of Ethics Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121260/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 6 of 7

Page 14 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Initial Legal Review Shannon Fleming: Counsel 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Community Centers, Tex. Health & Safety Code Ch. 534 

• Regulation of Conflicts of Interest of Officers of Municipalities, Counties and Certain Other 
Local Governments, Tex. Local Government Code Chapter 171 

LD12A - Code of Ethics Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121260/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 7 of 7

Page 15 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13958978 

Origination 06/2000 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Rita Alford: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM6A Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual 
Health Information 

1. PURPOSE: 
The Harris Center shall protect the privacy of all patients'/ individual's health information and safeguard 
such information against loss, damage, alteration or impermissible disclosure. Uses and disclosures will 
be made only as permitted or required by law and will consist of only the relevant or minimal amount 
necessary to satisfy the purpose of the use or disclosure. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that the patient/ individual records are the property of the Harris 
Center and may be removed from the Harris Center premises only in accordance with a court order, 
subpoena or statute or signed written authorization from patient/ individual or legally authorized 
representative. Proven privacy violations of the patient/ individual health information by any employee or 
business associate may be cause for disciplinary actions, including termination of employment or 
contract. Violations will also be mitigated in accordance with privacy regulations. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all departments, divisions, facilities and/or programs within The Harris Center, 
including contractors, volunteers, interns and Business Associates. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
HIM6B - Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/Individual Health Information 

HIM6A Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958978/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 4

Page 16 of 60



5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
Policy and Procedures Reference 

• Content of Patient/ Individual Records Content of Patient/ Individual 
Records 

HIM8 

• Faxing & Emailing Patient Identifying InformationFaxing and Emailing 
Patient/Individual identifying Information 

HIM10 

• Patient/ Individual Access to Medical RecordsPatient/ Individual Access to 
Medical Records 

HIM12 

• Patient/Individual Records Administration Patient/Individual Records 
Administration 

HIM13 

• Sanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy ViolationsSanctions for 
Breach of Security and/or Privacy Violations 

HIM15 

• Business AssociateBusiness Associate LD1 

Forms 

• Authorization Request Cover Letter 

• Emergency Verification for Disclosure of Protected Health Information 

• Media Consent Form 

• Authorization to Disclose Patient/Individual Health Information 

• Revocation for Disclosure of Health Information 

Attachments 

• Release of Information Log 

• Release of Information Grid 

• Verification Checklist for Processing Authorizations 

• Release of Information Cover Letter 

HIM6A Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958978/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 4

Page 17 of 60



• Confidentiality Statement 

• Release of Information Processing Fee 

• Release of Information Invoice 

• Subpoena Information Sheet 

• Employee Statement of Information Security and Confidentiality 

• Emergency Verification for Disclosure of Protected Health Information 

• Confidentiality Awareness Guidelines 

• Guidelines for Releases 

• Business Records Affidavit 

• No Records Affidavit 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Texas Administrative Code: Protected Health Information, Chapter 414, Subchapter A 

• Texas Human Resources Codes, Chapter 48 

• Texas Health and Safety Codes, Chapter 611 

• Texas Family Code, Chapter 32 

• Texas Family Code Sec 58.0052 

• Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 159 

• Texas Rules of Civil Evidence, Rule 509 

• Texas Rules of Criminal Evidence, Rule 510 

• Title 42 Code of Federal Regulation Part 2 

• Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 1996, Part 160 and 164 

• The Privacy Act of 1974 

• Code of Federal Regulations 483.10(e) 

• Texas Health & Safety Code Chapter 181 

HIM6A Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958978/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 3 of 4

Page 18 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 07/2023 

Initial Assignment Rita Alford: Dir 07/2023 

HIM6A Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958978/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 4 of 4

Page 19 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14121264 

Origination 06/2000 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Rita Alford: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM9A Correcting Documentation and Coding Errors 

1. PURPOSE: 
Data entry corrections may need to be made as a result of data errors such as miscoding, omission of 
direct service data entries/medical record documentation, or discrepancies between medical record and 
computer information related to date, time, location, provider name and unit number entries identified by 
internal or external chart reviews. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that patient/individual records will be free from errors and 
discrepancies. 

3. PROCEDURES: 
Correcting Documentation and Coding Errors 

4. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all departments, divisions, facilities and/or programs within The Harris Center. 

5. PROCEDURES: 
HIM9B Correcting Documentation and Code Errors 

6. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 

HIM9A Correcting Documentation and Coding Errors. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121264/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 20 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 09/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 09/2023 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Rita Alford: Dir 08/2023 

only): 
Policy & Procedures References 

Patient/individual Records AdministrationPatient/individual Records Administration HIM13A 

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, 45 CFR Part 164 
Confidentiality of Substance Use of Disorder Patient Records,42 CFR Part 2, Subpart B 
Physician-Patient Communication, Tex. Occupation Code Ch. 159 
Medical Records Privacy, Tex. Health and Safety Code Ch. 181 
Mental Health Records, Tex. Health and Safety Code Ch. 611 

DEFINITIONS: 
Miscoding – The use of a direct service procedure code for service activities which are not adequately 
supported in the content of the progress notes, or the use of the wrong procedure code but adequate 
documentation exist in the progress notes to support coding for another service. 

Direct Service Log Data Entry Omission – Omission of direct service data such as a service code, date, 
start time, end time, or provider name/number, etc. entry in the computer when a direct service was 
provided and documented in the progress notes. 

Medical Record Documentation Omission – The omission of documentation in the medical record when 
a direct service was provided, and the direct service data was entered into the computer. 

HIM9A Correcting Documentation and Coding Errors. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121264/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 21 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13761657 

Origination N/A 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised N/A 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Ninfa Escobar: 
Dir 

Area Human 
Resources 

Document 
Type 

Agency Plan 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) Aug-2024 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) 
FY2023 – FY2024 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan 

Culture is an integrated pattern of human behavior, which includes but is not limited to thought, 
communication, languages, beliefs, values, practices, customs, courtesies, rituals, manners of 
interacting, roles, relationships and expected behaviors of a racial, ethnic, religious, social, or political 
group, all dimensions of diversity. Cultural Competence is a key principle that is integrated within all 
aspects of The Harris Center's service delivery process. The agency will respond effectively to the needs 
of all persons served, families, employees, community, from culturally and linguistically diverse groups. 

The Harris Center is committed to facilitate better outcomes for people with diverse cultural, religious, 
and linguistic needs. Our Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) addresses how we will respond 
to the diversity of our community as well as how our knowledge, skills, and behaviors will enable 
personnel to work effectively cross culturally by understanding, appreciating, and respecting differences 
and similarities in beliefs, values, and practices within and between cultures. 

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) believes cultural competence is the 
ability to interact effectively with people of different cultures and includes the ongoing practice of 
gathering and utilizing knowledge, information, and data from and about individuals and their families, 
communities, and groups. This plan is a framework to embed cultural diversity in all the department's 
services, programs, and policies. It builds on our wide-ranging efforts to improve services for culturally 
and linguistically diverse communities. 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) Aug-2024. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13761657/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 6

Page 22 of 60



Competency reflects an acknowledgment that recovery is individual and unique. It includes the 
adaptation of approaches and interventions based on and targeted to the individual(s) being served. 
However, as opposed to memorizing information about groups and making assumptions, culturally 
competent staff maintain an "asking stance", remaining curious, and in partnership, asking consumers 
about who they are and seeking what approach works best for them. Cultural competence is staying 
open-minded, as well as applying methods and initiating services that are culturally congruent. The goal 
is to assist consumers in their acceptance and understanding of the benefits of mental health services 
and treatment. 

The Harris Center is committed to the training and education in diversity and cultural competency for all 
staff initiated during the New Employee Orientation process and on an annual basis thereafter. The 
Harris Center will collaborate with external community resources to provide our personnel a well-
rounded approach to diversity education. We will educate our personnel in terms of culture, age, gender, 
sexual orientation, spiritual beliefs, and socioeconomic status, with inclusion of an address on language. 
Training will focus on the cultures and spiritual beliefs of our region, and the views of health, wellness, 
disability and its causes, and the influence of culture on the choice of service outcomes and methods. 
Training will also emphasize the importance of valuing diversity and promoting a culture of inclusion. 

Components of the Harris Center Cultural Competence 
and Diversity Plan 

Goals: 

• Improve communication to and from stakeholders, employees, community, persons served, 
served for whom cultural/linguistic issues are present. 

• Improve employees' understanding and sensitivity to cultural diversity within the agency and 
with persons served. 

• Improve services and outcomes for persons served. 

The Harris Center Employee Demographic Data 

The Harris Center collects basic demographic information to assess and determine such information as: 

• Ethnicity 

• Gender 

• Age 

• Composition of the service area by key demographics (Harris County Area needs assessment 
completed every 3 years) 

Policies, Procedures and Governance 

The Harris Center has a Board of Trustees that represents diverse community populations and promotes 
the importance of cultural competence to achieve quality outcomes. The Agency also participates in 
active collaborative committees with community partners (IDD PAC). 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) Aug-2024. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13761657/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 6

Page 23 of 60



Services/Programs 

The Harris Center has a culturally competent agency which offers services that are culturally competent 
and in a language that ensures client/consumer comprehension. Interpreter services are provided to the 
people served at The Harris Center including Crisis Services. 

Care Management 

The Harris Center ensures: 

• Client services are monitored for clinical and cultural appropriateness 

• Supervision of clinicians includes addressing cultural aspects of care 

• Referrals consider the cultural appropriateness of the referred agency 

Continuity of Care: 

The Harris Center continuum of care includes services that are culturally appropriate and compatible 
across all levels of the agency. 

Education and Development 

The Harris Center implements staff training and development in cultural competence at all levels and 
across all disciplines including leadership. New employee orientation includes training on cultural 
diversity and there is an annual training required for all employees. If an issue arises, special cultural 
diversity training will be scheduled for that group/issue. 

The Harris Center's Inclusion Hub is a volunteer, employee-driven group that was organized to further the 
mission of The Harris Center and its employees. The Hub was formed to enhance the following: 

• Attracting, recruiting, and retaining diverse employees. 

• Promoting diversity, culture awareness, and an inclusive work environment. 

• Increasing employee job satisfaction, morale, and productivity. 

• Fostering professional development and learning through mentoring, networking, open 
dialogue, and the exchange of ideas. 

• Supporting The Harris Center's business by reinforcing The Harris Center's diversity initiatives 
in the workplace and the community at large. 

Quality Monitoring and Performance Improvement 

The Harris Center has a quality monitoring and improvement program that: 

• Evaluates services in terms of access, retention and engagement and service quality by key 
client demographics 

• Utilizes these data for service planning and improvement purposes 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) Aug-2024. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13761657/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 3 of 6

Page 24 of 60



APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 

This Plan applies to all The Harris Center staff and services 

Cultural competence is essential to the provision of effective services and treatment for diverse 
populations. On the part of The Harris Center employee's cultural competence includes incorporating 
language, knowledge, skills, and attitudes within systems of care that are informed by the specific 
reality of a client/consumer's cultural circumstances to include areas of sexual orientation, spiritual 
beliefs, and socioeconomic status. Truly competent service acknowledges and incorporates cultural 
variables into the assessment and treatment process. That information is integrated and transformed 
into specific clinical practices, standards and skills, service approaches, techniques and marketing 
strategies, and evidence-based initiatives that match the service population and serves to increase the 
quality and appropriateness of mental health care (Davis, 1997). "Competency" refers to the ability of 
staff to acknowledge and understand the influence of cultural histories (including oppressive histories), 
life experiences, language differences, beliefs, values, formal and informal help-seeking pathways, and 
traditional healing practices on an individual's recovery. 

CULTURAL COMPETENCE is 

1. A defined set of values and principles which are reflected within the behaviors, attitudes, 
policies and structures of The Harris Center's organization, staff, and community stakeholders 
to result in appropriate and effective services for all. 

2. The capacity to (1) value diversity, (2) conduct self-assessment, (3) manage the dynamics of 
difference, (4) acquire and institutionalize cultural knowledge, and (5) adapt to diversity and 
the cultural contexts of the communities served. 

3. Integration of the above in all aspects of policy making, administration, practice, service 
delivery, and systematic involvement of consumers and families as appropriate, key 
stakeholders, and communities. 

LINGUISTIC COMPETENCE is the capacity of The Harris Center and its personnel to communicate 
effectively and convey information in a manner that is easily understood by diverse audiences. Linguistic 
competence involves the development of inter agency and internal capacity to respond effectively to the 
mental health, literacy and communication needs of the populations served, and to possess the policy, 
structures, practices, procedures, and dedicated resources to support this capacity. 

CULTURAL refers to integrated patterns of human customs, beliefs, and values of racial, ethnic, religious, 
or social groups. 

COMPETENCE implies having the capacity to function effectively as an individual and as an organization 
within the context of the cultural beliefs, behaviors, and needs presented by adults, children, youth and 
families and their communities. 

CULTURAL BROKERS are individuals who help to communicate differences and similarities across 
cultures to eliminate the cultural gap between them. They may also mediate and negotiate more 
complex processes within organizations, government, communities, and between interest groups or 
countries. Cultural brokers are knowledgeable about the beliefs, values and norms of their cultural group, 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) Aug-2024. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13761657/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 4 of 6

Page 25 of 60



and the system they have helped to navigate successfully for their families. They can serve as cultural 
liaisons, cultural guides, and mediators of distrust between cultures, models, mentors, and catalysts for 
change. 

Cultural Competence and Diversity (CCDP) 
Action Plan 
GOAL #1: Continue to diversify The Harris Center staff composition to increase the match 
between client and staff demographics 

Objectives Action Steps Person(s) 
Responsible 

Time Frame Expected 
Outcome 

Measures 

1.Monitor 
and 
maintain 
the 
cultural 
diversity 
of staff. 

1. Bi-annually 
compare staff and 
consumer 
demographics to 
assess how closely 
the staff is 
consistent with the 
community we serve 

Talent 
Acquisition 
Director, HR 
Recruiter 
and Sr. 
Leadership 

FY2023- FY2024 Increase match 
between cultural 
diversity of The 
Harris Center 
staff and those 
we serve. 

Consumer 
demographics 
vs. staff 
demographics 

 2. Develop and 
periodically update 
list of stakeholders 
and organizations in 
the community to 
notify when openings 
become available. 

    

 3. Market 
employment 
incentives & benefits 
of working at of The 
Harris Center via 
culturally connected 
outlets 

    

 4. Focus on 
attracting and hiring 
more multi-lingual 
staff 

    

GOAL #2: Ensure that all staff receive ongoing cultural sensitivity training. 

Objectives Action Steps Person(s) 
Responsible 

Time Frame Expected 
Outcome 

Measures 

1. Ensure 
compliance 

1. Continuously 
improve training 

Management 
Team and 
Training 

FY2023-FY2024 Optimum 
cultural 
diversity 

Training 
compliance 
reports 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) Aug-2024. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13761657/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 5 of 6

Page 26 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 07/2023 

Initial Assignment Ninfa Escobar: Dir 06/2023 

with required 
annual training 
on diversity 
and cultural 
sensitivity 

materials and 
update as 
necessary 
2. Audit training 
transcripts for 
compliance. 
3. Notify 
management when 
staff are identified 
as out of 
compliance on 
diversity training 

training 
conducted at 
least annually 
and for all new 
employees 

2. Establish 
cultural 
competency 
training in 
relationship to 
the military 
culture 

1. Work with 
Veteran Community 
partners on 
development of 
training materials 
and increase 
access to training 

Management 
Team and 
Training, The 
Harris 
Center, 
Veteran 
Services, 
Work Group 

FY2023-FY2024 Cultural 
diversity 
training 
conducted at 
least annually 
and for all new 
employees 

Training 
compliance 
reports 

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan (CCDP) Aug-2024. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13761657/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 6 of 6

Page 27 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13233625 

Origination 11/2020 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 08/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Toby Hicks 

Area Human 
Resources 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HR6A Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive 
Discipline, and Termination 

1. PURPOSE: 
This policy provides a mechanism to inform employees of the expected standards of conduct or 
performance and the consequences when these expectations are not met. This policy enables Center 
transparency so that employees understand what is expected of them, provides supervisors with 
guidelines to follow when taking corrective action, provides appropriate documentation of the corrective 
action in the employee's Human Resource record and establishes a fair, consistent, and collaborative 
approach to policy administration. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to provide satisfyingengaging employment for every employee, 
however The Harris Center recognizes that conditions may develop which preclude continued 
employment. The Harris Center is equally committed to enforcing Center policies and procedures 
through a collaborative approach to discipline that treats people as valued partners, promotes mutual 
respect and problem solving, and reinforces accountability while maintaining efficient and effective 
operations. Any employee who engages in conduct detrimental to the expressed purpose of The Harris 
Center or violates its established and approved policies and procedures is subject to disciplinary action 
up to and including termination. 

While The Harris Center wishes to help employees experiencing performance problems. The Harris 
Center reserves the right to terminate employees at its discretion. In general, The Harris Center follows a 
progressive disciplinary procedure beginning with a verbal warning; however, discipline may begin at any 

HR6A Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline, and Termination. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233625/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 3

Page 28 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 09/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 09/2023 

Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 08/2023 

step in the process up to and including immediate termination depending upon the seriousness of the 
infraction. 

Federal and state law prohibit The Harris Center from taking adverse employment action (like 
disciplinary actions, demotion, change in compensation, and termination) against employees who 
participate in legally protected activity. Also, federal and state law prohibit The Harris Center from taking 
adverse employment actions against employees on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, pregnancy, childbirth or a related medical condition, age, veteran status, disability, or any 
characteristic as protected by law. The Harris Center shall enforce discipline uniformly so that 
employees have reasonable expectations about the consequences of their actions, and so that The 
Harris Center reduce their risk of discrimination claims. The Harris Center's exercise of discretion shall 
always be based on legitimate business and legal considerations and shall never be discriminatory or 
retaliatory. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center including, both direct and contracted 
employees. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 

• Notice of Disciplinary Action 

5. PROCEDURE: 
6. REFERENCESREFERENCE: RULES/
REGULATIONS/STANDARDS: 

• The Harris Center's Employee Handbook 

HR6A Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline, and Termination. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233625/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 3

Page 29 of 60



Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 08/2023 

HR6A Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline, and Termination. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233625/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 3 of 3

Page 30 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14121248 

Origination 03/2005 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Mustafa 
Cochinwala: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM5A Incident Response Policy 

1. PURPOSE 
This policy establishes that The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD will maintain incident response 
capabilities and procedures. 

2. POLICY 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD will ensure that information security incidents are reported, 
investigated, and responded to according to regulatory requirements and to limit damages. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 
All Harris Center staff, volunteers, contractors, programs, and services. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HIM2A Breach Notification 

5. PROCEDURES 
HIM5B Incident Response Procedure 

HIM5A Incident Response Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121248/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 31 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• NIST SP 800-53 Rev. 4 CP-2, IR-8 

• HIPAA Security Rule 45 C.F.R. §§ 164.308(a)(6), 164.308(a)(7), 
164.310(a)(2)(i),164.312(a)(2)(ii) 

HIM5A Incident Response Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121248/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 32 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14121254 

Origination 08/2014 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Mustafa 
Cochinwala: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM4A Information Security Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to promote effective information security practices at The Harris Center for 
Mental Health by defining and implementing information security standards. 

2. POLICY: 
It is The Harris Center's policy to identify and evaluate the likelihood and consequences of threats to the 
security of confidential informationInformation and implement reasonable and appropriate measures to 
safeguard the Confidentiality, Availability, and Integrity of that information. The Center's information 
policy and procedures are based on NIST SP 800-53 and the HIPAA Security Rule. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all Harris Center Employees/Staff. All independent contractors who provide 
services that require access to the Computer Network will be required to adhere to this policy, as well to 
any procedures established to support this policy. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
HIM4B Information Security Proceduresprocedures 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HIM2A - Breach Notification 

HIM4A Information Security Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

14121254/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 33 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

HIM3A Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy 

HIM11A - Off-Premises Equipment Usage 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• HIPAA Security & Privacy-Security Standards for Protection of Electronic Protected Health 
Information, 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C 

• NIST SP 800-53 Rev. 4 PM-1, PS-7 

• CARF: Section 1., Subsection J., Technology 

HIM4A Information Security Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

14121254/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 34 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14251353 

Origination 11/2012 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Mustafa 
Cochinwala: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM11A - Off-Premises Equipment Usage 

1. PURPOSE 
This purpose of this policy is to ensure proper assignment and return of all property and equipment 
owned, leased, or in possession of The Harris Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and 
Developmental Disability (The Harris Center) employee for both temporary and permanent use. 

2. POLICY 
All property and equipment owned, leased or in the possession of The Harris Center are assigned to a 
unit, a location and an employee. Most property will not leave the assigned unit. In the event that it is 
essential for property or equipment to be used off premises, written approval must be obtained from the 
Unit Director. Property and/or Equipment may either be signed out to an employee on a temporary basis 
to complete a specific assignment or on a longer-term basis if the location of the property or equipment 
is essential for day to day performance of the job. Property and/or equipment signed out to an employee 
becomes the financial responsibility of that employee. All property and equipment shall be returned to 
the Harris Center upon termination of employment or completion of a special assignment, internship or 
volunteer experience. Workforce members must report all instances of equipment damage, loss, or theft 
via the Harris Center incident reporting system. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 
This policy applies to all interns, volunteers, and staff employed by The Harris Center including, both 
direct and contracted employees. Property and equipment covered by this policy includes 1) all property 
and equipment with The Harris Center numbered inventory tags on it, including laptop computers, and 2) 
leased equipment or other equipment which represent a financial obligation of The Harris Center. 

HIM11A - Off-Premises Equipment Usage. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

14251353/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 35 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 09/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 09/2023 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

4. PROCEDURES 
FM3B Property InventoryFM3B Property Inventory 

A. TEMPORARY OFF-PREMISES USE OF EQUIPMENT 

B. PERMANENT ASSIGNMENT OF EQUIPMENT FOR OFF-PREMISES USE 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HIM4A Information Security Policy 
Request to Transfer Property Form 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS 

A. CARF: Section 1., Subsection J., Technology 

HIM11A - Off-Premises Equipment Usage. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

14251353/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 36 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14121251 

Origination 05/1998 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Rita Alford: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM13A Patient Records Administration 

1. PURPOSE: 
An adequate and accurate medical record must be maintained for each patient/individual receiving 
service from The Harris Center. Throughout each Division, patient/individual records (electronic or paper-
based) must be uniformly organized so that information can be located quickly and easily. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that the medical record, as a legal document, must also be 
completely accurate and true, containing all information pertinent to the services received by the patient/
individual. All direct care staff will be responsible for documenting and authenticating the care rendered 
to patients/lndividuals in accordance with professional standards of documentation and specifically 
mandated regulatory, legal and/or accrediting standards. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy will be used by all employees, contractors, interns, and volunteers within the Harris Center. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
HIM13B 

HIM13A Patient Records Administration. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

14121251/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 37 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 09/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 09/2023 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Rita Alford: Dir 08/2023 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 
Policies and Procedures Reference 

Agency Abbreviation List HIM1A 

Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient Identifying Information HIM6A 

Retention of Patient/Individual Records HIM14A 

Content of Patient Records HIM8A 

Correcting Documentation and Coding Errors HIM9A 

Information Security Policy HIM4 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Medical Records System, 26 Tex. Admin. Code §301.329 
Medical Records, 22 Tex. Admin. Code Ch.165 
Psychological Records, Test Data, & Test Materials, 22 Tex. Admin. Code §465.22 

HIM13A Patient Records Administration. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

14121251/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 38 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13958974 

Origination 11/2002 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Rita Alford: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM15A Sanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy 
Violations of Health Information 

1. PURPOSE: 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) and its staff are entrusted with personal 
and clinical information regarding the patientspatient/ Individuals we serve. The Harris Center, as an 
employee health plan sponsor, is also entrusted with employee health information. We recognize that 
these pieces of information are highly confidential and must be treated with great respect and care by all 
staff with access to the information. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that any breach in confidentiality or security by a staff person shall be 
subject to formal disciplinary action as set forth in this policy and procedure. Confidentiality breaches 
are also subject to federal investigations and possible fines and imprisonment as set forth in the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Privacy Rule. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all departments, divisions, facilities and/or programs within The Harris Center. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
SanctionsHIM15BSanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy Violations of Health Information 

HIM15A Sanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy Violations of Health Information. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958974/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 39 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 07/2023 

Initial Assignment Rita Alford: Dir 07/2023 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
Policy and Procedures Reference 

Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information HIM6 

Security of Patient/ Individual Identifying Information HIM16 

Incident Reporting EM4 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
American Health Information Management Association Practice Brief: Retention of Health Information 
Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, 45CFR Part 160, Subpart D 
Confidentiality of Substance Use of Disorder Patient Records, 42 CFR Part2, Subpart A 
Physician-Patient Communication, Tex. Occupation Code Ch. 159 
Medical Records Privacy, Tex. Health and Safety Code Ch. 181 
Mental Health Record, Tex. Health and Safety Code Ch. 611 

HIM15A Sanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy Violations of Health Information. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958974/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 40 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13958983 

Origination 08/2022 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Toby Hicks 

Area Human 
Resources 

HR30A Sexual Harassment Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
To ensure all staff, contractors, volunteers, and interns of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 
respond immediately and take immediate and appropriate corrective action in response to sexual 
harassment in the workplace. 

2. POLICY: 
The Harris Center is committed to providing a work environment that is free from sexual harassment. In 
pursuit of this goal, the Harris Center adheres to all relevant federal, state, and local laws and regulations 
regarding sexual harassment. The Harris Center strictly prohibits and does not tolerate any form of 
sexual harassment and any other conduct that creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work 
environment based on sex. In addition, the Harris Center prohibits harassing conduct against anyone for 
involvement in reporting or investigation of sexual harassment claims. 

3. PROCEDURES: 
Sexual Harassment Procedure 

4. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center Staff, contractors, volunteers and interns.intern 

HR30A Sexual Harassment Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958983/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 41 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 07/2023 

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 07/2023 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 
The Harris Center Compliance PlanThe Harris Center Compliance PlanLD11A Corporate Compliance 

LD11A Corporate Compliance 

6. PROCEDURE: 
HR30B Sexual Harassment Procedure 

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VII), 42 U.S.C. §§2000e-2000e-17 

• Unlawful Employment Practices, Texas Labor Code Chapter 21, Subchapter B 

• Guidelines on Discrimination Because of Sex, 29 CFR Part 1604.011- 

HR30A Sexual Harassment Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958983/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 42 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 11936825 

Origination 07/2021 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 08/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Gertrude Leidich: 
Vice President 
Clinical 
Transformation 
and Quality 

Area Medical Services 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

MED8A - System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to promote best practices, improve quality and safety of patient care, and 
reduce risk to patients through an environment that encourages internal reporting and ongoing 
evaluation and analysis of processes and occurrences. The PatientSystem Quality, Safety and 
Experience Committee was operationalized by the Professional Review Committee (PRC) and is a sub 
committee of the PRC. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of the PatientSystem Quality, Safety and Experience Committee to continually enhance the 
quality and safety of patient care at The Harris Center through a systematic and collaborative approach 
that supports the ongoing evaluation of The Harris Center's patient care processes and services. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all staff and contractors of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD and the 
services provided. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
• Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee 

• Infection Prevention 

• System Accreditation 

• All PI Councils and internal learning collaboratives (e.g., Zero Suicide, Substance Use 

MED8A - System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11936825/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 3

Page 43 of 60



Disorders) 

• Approval of Care Pathways 

• Patient Experience / Satisfaction 

5. REGULATORY/REFERENCES: 
• Texas Medical Practices Act, 3 Tex. Occ. Code §151 

• Requirements Relating to Medical Peer Review, 3 Tex. Occ. Code §160 

• Nursing Peer Review, 3 Tex. Occ. Code §303 

• Incident-based Nursing Peer Review & Whistleblower Protections, 22 Tex. Admin. Code 
§217.19 

• Rights and Protections of Persons Receiving Mental Health Services, 25 Tex. Admin. Code 
§414 

6. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 

• Texas Medical Practices Act, Texas Occupations Code Chapters 151,160 

• Nursing Peer Review, Texas Occupations Code Chapter 303 

• Incident-based Nursing Peer Review & Whistleblower Protections, Title 22 Tex. Admin. Code 
§217.19 

• Rights and Protections of Persons Receiving Mental Health Services, Title 25 Tex. Admin. 
Code Chapter 414 

7. PROCEDURES: 
• Committee Composition 

• Committee Process 

• Confidentiality 

• Peer Review Referral 

• Committee Function 

• Conflicts of Interest 

• Staff Supervisor Responsibilities 

System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee Procedure 

8. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Reporting Allegations of Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation 

• Confidentiality Guidelines for Participants in PatientSystem Quality, Safety and Experience

MED8A - System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11936825/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 3

Page 44 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Final Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Initial Legal Review Shannon Fleming: Counsel 07/2023 

Department Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 
(1101 1817) 

07/2023 

Initial Assignment Gertrude Leidich: Vice 
President Clinical 
Transformation and Quality 

07/2023 

Committee Process 

• Incident Review Form - Patient Safety Committee 

• Incident Referral Form - Patient Safety Committee 

MED8A - System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11936825/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 3 of 3

Page 45 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13233634 

Origination 10/2020 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 08/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Ninfa Escobar: 
Dir 

Area Human 
Resources 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HR25A Temporary Personnel Services 

1. PURPOSE: 
This policy sets out procedures and protocols for the use of temporary personnel at The Harris Center 
for Mental Health and Intellectual and Developmental Disability (The Harris Center). 

2. POLICY: 
Temporary personnel services will be utilized to meet critical staffing needs. In order to contract with The 
Harris Center, temporary personnel services must meet the Agency's bid specifications and be approved 
by The Harris Center's Board of Trustees. Each unit is required to submit a written request to the Human 
Resources Department of Human Resource Service before a temporary personnel services employee is 
assigned. The Department of Human Resources will be responsible for the coordination of the job 
request and the administration of the program as well as manage any staffing protocol. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center including, both direct and contracted 
employees. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 

• PER:21 Temporary Personnel Services 

• Reporting Allegations of Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation 

HR25A Temporary Personnel Services. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

13233634/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 46 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 07/2023 

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 07/2023 

• Employment Policy 

Employment 

Reporting Allegations of Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation of Children, Elderly Persons and Persons with 
Disabilities 

5. PROCEDURE: 
Temporary Personnel Services 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Rules/Regulations/Standards 

The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook 

Temporary Personnel Services 

HR25A Temporary Personnel Services. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/

13233634/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 47 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13958985 

Origination 02/2019 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Todd 
McCorquodale: 
Dir 

Area Environmental 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

EM1A The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the 
Harris Center Facilities Pertaining to Patients and Visitors 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance concerning the rights of individuals with disabilities to 
utilize service or assistance animals in agency facilities, as defined under the Americans with Disabilities 
Act and state law. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that individuals with disabilities shall be permitted to be 
accompanied by their service animals in all areas of The Harris Center's facilities where members of the 
public, participants in services, programs or activities, or invitees, where applicable, are allowed to go. 
Therapy Animals, emotional support or comfort animals, and companion animals are not considered 
service animals and are therefore not permitted in agency facilities. The Harris Center does not "certify" 
animals as Service Animals. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All of The Harris Center facilities. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
None 

EM1A The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center Facilities Pertaining to Patients and Visitors. Retrieved

09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958985/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for

Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 48 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Todd McCorquodale: Dir 07/2023 

5. PROCEDURE: 
EM1B The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center Facilities 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• City of Houston Ordinance Sec 6-86 

• Texas Human Resources Code, Title 8, Chapter 121 

• Title II Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 12.101, et. seq.; 28 CFR Part 36.101, et. seq. 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 794 

7. PROCEDURES: 
The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center Facilities 

EM1A The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center Facilities Pertaining to Patients and Visitors. Retrieved

09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13958985/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for

Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 49 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13233632 

Origination 05/1992 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Toby Hicks 

Area Human 
Resources 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HR27A Volunteer Program 

1. PURPOSE 
To establish guidelines for recruitment selection, assignment, evaluation and separation of The Harris 
Center for Mental Health and IDD's volunteers. The Harris Center volunteers are individuals offering their 
time to assist in the provision of behavioral health and IDD services and do not receive compensation. 

2. POLICY 
It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD to establish a comprehensive volunteer 
program to provide individuals who have expressed an interest in associating with The Harris Center as a 
volunteer the opportunity to assist in the provision of services without pay. These opportunities should 
be beneficial to the volunteers, people we serve, and the Harris Center. Volunteers will be selected 
without regard to race, color, age, sex, disability, religion, or national origin. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 
All programs within The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD. 

4.  RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
N/A 

5.  PROCEDURE: 
HR27B Volunteer Program 

HR27A Volunteer Program. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233632/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 2

Page 50 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Joseph Gorczyca 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 08/2023 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Volunteers, Tex. Government Code Ch. 2109 

• Tex. Civ. Prac. & Rem. Code Ann. 84.003 

• The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook 

HR27A Volunteer Program. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233632/.

Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 2

Page 51 of 60





Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14121257 

Origination 03/2005 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Mustafa 
Cochinwala: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM3A Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The Harris Center recognizes that use of the agency's network, Internet, and email has many benefits 
and can make conducting Harris Center business and workplace communication more efficient and 
effective. Therefore, workforce members are encouraged to use the Internet and email systems for job-
related purposes, in accordance with Workforce Member Network and Internet Use Procedures. 
Unacceptable use of the Internet and e-mail can place The Harris Center and others at risk and is 
prohibited. The Harris Center complies with all applicable federal, state, and local laws as they concern 
the employer/employee relationship, and nothing contained herein should be construed to violate any of 
the rights or responsibilities contained in such laws. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the Harris Center's policy to provide employees with access to The Harris Center's computers, 
network communication system and other IT resources for business purposes only, which includes 
access to the Internet, email, intranet services, and internal & external web services. All communication, 
data and information created, transmitted by, received from, stored, or processed on the Harris Center 
network and computing devices is Harris Center property and, as such, are intended to be used for job- 
related purposes. Therefore, employees shall have no expectation of privacy whatsoever in any 
message, file, data, document, facsimile, or any kind or form of information or communication 
transmitted to, received, printed from, stored, or recorded on the Harris Center's electronic information 
and communication systems. 

HIM3A Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121257/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 1 of 3

Page 52 of 60



3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy must be followed in conjunction with other The Harris Center's policies governing appropriate 
workplace conduct and behavior. This policy applies to all Harris Center employees, interns, contractors, 
volunteers, and partners who access our network and computers. This policy governs all IT resources 
and communications systems owned by or available at The Harris Center, and all use of such resources 
and systems when accessed using personally owned resources, including but not limited to: 

• Email systems and accounts 

• Internet and Intranet access 

• Telephones, cell phones, voicemail systems 

• Printers, photocopiers, and scanners 

• Face machines, e-fax machines 

• All other associated computer, network, and communication systems, hardware, and software 

3.1. INAPPROPRIATE USE OF HARRIS CENTER IT 
RESOURCES AND COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS 
The Harris Center management and its employees, interns, contractors volunteers and partners with 
access to the Harris Center IT system will cooperate fully with Human Resources, the Harris Center 
Information Security team and local, state, or federal officials in any investigation concerning to or 
relating to any illegal activities allegedly conducted through the Harris Center's IT system. 

3.2. DISCIPLINE 
In the event there is an allegation that an employee has violated The Harris Center Network and Internet 
Use Policy, the employee will be provided with a written notice of the alleged violation and an opportunity 
to present an explanation to Harris Center management. Employee violations of this policy will be 
handled in accordance with currently established disciplinary procedures. Violations of this policy can 
lead to disciplinary action, up to and including, revocation of access and/or termination. 

4. PROCEDURE: 
Workforce Member Network and Internet Use ProcedureHIM3B Workforce Member Network Internet Use 
Procedure 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
Workforce Member Network and Internet Use 
Procedure Workforce Member Network and 
Internet Use Agreement 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

HIM3A Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121257/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 2 of 3

Page 53 of 60



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 08/2023 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 08/2023 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 08/2023 

STANDARDS: 
• HIPAA-SecurityStandardsforthe Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information, 45 CFR 

Part 164, Subpart C 

• NIST SP 800-53 Rev. 4 AT-2, PM-13 

• CARF: Section 1., Subsection J., Technology 

HIM3A Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy. Retrieved 09/2023. Official copy at

http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121257/. Copyright © 2023 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Page 3 of 3

Page 54 of 60





ABBREVIATION LIST

Not Competent to stand trial HCJ46B

A
Assertive Community Treatment
Activities of Daily Living
Aid to Families with Dependent Children
Assisted Living facility
Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment
Assisted out- patient treatment

Adult Protective Services
Association for Retarded Citizens
Alcohol Use Disorders Identification Test

ACT
ADL
AFDC
ALF
ANSA
AOT

APS
ARC
AUDIT-C

B
BABY CANS Baby Child Assessment needs (3-5 years)

Behavioral Health Organization
Brief Bipolar Disorder Symptom Scale
Brief Negative Symptom Assessment

BHO
BDSS
BNSA

C
Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths
Child and Adolescent Psychiatric Emergency Services
Child and Adolescent Psychiatric Services
Client Assessment and Registration
Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities
Child and Adolescent Services
Children’s Behavioral Checklist
Community Behavioral Health Network
Cognitive behavior therapy
Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic
Clinical case review
Chronic Consumer Stabilization Initiative
Crisis Counseling Unit
Children’s Health Insurance Plan
Chronically III and Disabled Children
Crisis Intervention Response Team
Clinical Institute Withdrawal Assessment for Alcohol
Children’s Medication Algorithm Project
Clinical Management for Behavioral Health Services
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Continuity of Care

CANS
CAPES
CAPS
CARE
CARF
CAS
CBCL
CBHN
CBT
CCBHC
CCR
CCSI
ecu
CHIP
ClDC
CIRT
CIWA
CMAP
CMBHS
CMS
COC

Page 55 of 60



Co-Occurring Disorders Unit
Co-occurring Psychiatric and Substance Abuse Disorders
Council on Recovery
Comprehensive Psychiatric Emergency Programs
Charleston Psychiatric Ou^atient Satisfaction Scale
Children’s Protective Services
Community Resource Coordination Group
Crisis Residential Unit
Community Sen/ice Center
Community Supervision and corrections department
Community Support plan
Crisis Stabilization Unit
Community Youth Services

COD
COPSD
COR
CPEP
CROSS
CPS
CRCG
CRU
CSC
CSCD
CSP
CSU
CYS

D
Department of Family and Protective Services
Department of Health and Hurnan Services
Determination of Intellectual Disability
Daily Living Activitles-20 Item Version
Dangerousness review board .
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. 5^ Edition
Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment Program

DFPS
DHHS
DID
DLA-20
DRB
DSM-5
DSRIP

E
Early Childhood Intervention
Early Onset
Early Periodic Screening Diagnosis and Treatment

ECl
EO
EPSDT

F
Forensic Assertive Community Team
Flex Funds
Full Scale Intelligence Quotient
Jail -Forensic Single Portal
Fagerstrom Test for Nicotine Dependence
Fiscal Year

FACT
FF
FSIQ
FSPA
FTND
FY

G
Global Assessment of Functioning
General Revenue

GAF
GR

Page 56 of 60



H
Hamilton Rating Scale for Anxiety
Harris County Juvenile Probation Department
Harris County Psychiatric Center
Harris County Psychiatric Intervention
Harris County Protective Services for Children and Adults
Home and Community Services
Home and Community Services - OBRA
Harris County Sheriffs Office
Harris Heaith System
Health Human Services
Heaith and Human Services Commission
Health Maintenance Organization
Homeless Outreach Team
Houston Police Department
Houston Recovery Center

HAM-A
HCJPD
HCPC
HCPl
HCPS
HCS
HCS-O
HCSO
HH
HHS
HHSC
HMO
HOT
HPD
HRC

I
Inventory for Client and Agency Planning
Interim Care Clinic
Intermediate Care Facility for Intellectual Disability
Individual Education Plan
Individual Family Support Plan
In Home Respite
Innovative Resource Group
Individualized recovery plan

ICAP
ICC
ICF-ID
lEP
IFSP
IHR
IRG
IRP

J
Juvenile Detention Center
Juvenile Justice Alternative Education Program
Job Satisfaction Scale

JDC
JJAEP
JSS

K

L
Legislative Appropriations Request
Local IDD Authority
Local Mental Health Authority . . . ̂
Level of Care - LOC A= Authorized and LOC R= Calculated
Length of Stay
Licensed Professional of the Healing Arts
Local Service Area

LAR
LIDDA
LMHA
LOC
LOS
LPHA
LSA

Page 57 of 60



M
Medicare Access and CHIP Reauthorization Act
Mental Retardation Adult Psychiatric Services
Medicaid Managed Care Report (Business Objects)
Managed Care Organization
Mobil Crisis Outreach Team
Multnomah Community Assessment Scale
Multiple Disabilities Unit
Mental Health Warrant
Minnesota Multiphasic Personality inventory 2"*^ Edition
Montreal Cognitive Assessment
Maximum security unit

MACRA
MAPS
MBOW
MCO
MCOT
MCAS
MDU
MHW
MMPI-2
MoCA
MSU

N
N

National Alliance for the Mentally III
New Employee Orientation
Not Guilty for Reason of Insanity (46C)
Neuro-Psychiatric Center
Northwest Community Service Center

NAMl
NEO
NGRI
NPC
NWCSC

o
Outreach Screening Assessment and Referral
Overt Agitation Severity Scale
Out of Home Respite
Office of Violent Sexual Offenders Management

OSAR
OASS
OHR
OVSOM

P
Patient Assistance Program (for Prescriptions)
Preadmission Screening and Annua! Residential Review

Project to Assist in the Transition from Homelessness
Personal Care Home
Patient care monitoring
Person Directed Plan
Plan-Do-Study-Act
Psychiatric Emergency Services
Post Hospitalization Crisis Residential Unit
Patient Health Questionnaire-9 Item Version
Patient Health Questionnaire-9 Modified for Adolescents
Performance Improvement
Performance Improvement Plan
Prevention and Management of Aggressive Behavior
Plan of Care

PAP
PASARR
PATH
PCH
PCM
POP
PDSA
PES
PHCRU
PHQ-9
PHQ-A
PI
PIP
PMAB
POC

Page 58 of 60



Perceptions of Care*lnpatlent
Professional Quality of Life Scale
Positive Symptom Rating Scale
Parent Satisfaction Scale

PoC-lP
ProQOL
PSRS
PSS

Q
Quality Assurance and Improvement System
Qualified Mental Health Professional
Quality Improvement
Quick Inventory of Depressive Symptomology-Clinician Rated

QAIS
QMHP
Q1
QIDS-C

R
Rehab Coordination
Release of Information

Recovery Manager
Residential Treatment Center

RC
ROI
RM
RTC

S
Service Authorization and Monitoring
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
Service Coordination
Southeast Community Service Center
Southeast Family Resource Center
Sequential Multiple Analysis tests
State mental health facility
Skilled Nursing Facility
Service Package (SP1, etc)
Single portal authority
State living facility
Southwest Community Service Center
Southwest Family Resource Center
Substance Use Disorder

SAM
SAMHSA
SC
SECSC
SEFRC
SMAC
SMHF
SNF
SP
SPA
SSLC
SWCSC
SWFRC
SUD

T
Texas Administrative code
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Texas Correctional Office on Offenders with Medical or Mental Impairments
Texas Department of Criminal Justice
Texas Health Kids
Texas Health Steps
Trauma informed Care
Texas Medication Algorithm Project

TAG
TANF
TCOOMMI
TDCJ
THKC
THSteps
TIC
TMAP

Page 59 of 60



Texas Medicaid & Healthcare partnership
Texas Juvenile Justice Department
Texas Resiliency and Recovery
Texas Workforce Commission

TMHP
TJJD
TRR
TWC

U
Utiiization Revie\wUR

V
Visit-Specific Satisfaction Scalev-sss

w

X

Y

Page 60 of 60


	Agenda
	I. DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting Held on Tuesday, August 22, 2023

	IV. REVIEW AND TAKE ACTION
	A. New Policies
	1. Behavioral Crisis and Intervention

	B. No/Minor Changes
	1. Code of Ethics
	2. Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/Individual Health Information
	3. Correcting Documentation and Coding Errors
	4. Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan
	5. Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline, and Termination
	6. Incident Response
	7. Information Security
	8. Off-Premises Equipment Usage
	9. Patient Records Administration
	10. Sanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy Violations of Health Information
	11. Sexual Harassment
	12. System Quality, Safety and Experience Committee
	13. Temporary Personnel Services
	14. The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris center Facilities Pertaining to Patients and Visitors
	15. Volunteer Program
	16. Workforce Member Network Internet Use


	V. REVIEW AND COMMENT
	A. Board Training Topics

	VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	•	As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed on the agenda.


	VII. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION                                                       
	VIII. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE SESSION
	IX. INFORMATION ONLY
	A. Abbreviation List

	X. ADJOURN
	



______________________________________
Veronica Franco, Board Liaison
Jim Lykes, Chair, Governance Committee
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD




